
1
City Council Minutes – May 5, 2014

City of Phoenix
City Council Executive Session/Meeting

Public Works Office
1000 S. “B” Street

Monday, May 5, 2014

CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Jeff Bellah called the Executive Session of the City Council to order on Monday, May 5,
2014 at 5:45 p.m. in the Public Works Office.

ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Bruce Sophie, Carolyn Bartell, Karen Jones, Terry Helfrich, Chris
Luz, Stan Bartell, Jeff Bellah

Staff Present: Steve Dahl, City Manager/Recorder
J. Ryan Kirchoff, City Attorney

Called under ORS 192.660 (2)(h), to consult with counsel concerning the legal rights and duties
of a public body with regard to current litigation or litigation likely to be filed.

Discussion followed and no decisions were made. Executive Session recessed at 6:30 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Jeff Bellah called the regular meeting of the City Council to order on Monday, May 5,
2014 at 6:35 p.m. in the Public Works Office.

ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Stan Bartell, Bruce Sophie, Karen Jones, Carolyn Bartell, Terry
Helfrich, Chris Luz, Jeff Bellah

Staff Present: Steve Dahl, City Manager/Recorder
Janette Boothe, Deputy City Recorder
Derek Bowker, Chief of Police
Steve Weber, Finance Director
Kevin Caldwell, Public Works Superintendent
J. Ryan Kirchoff, City Attorney

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE



2
City Council Minutes – May 5, 2014

MAYOR’S COMMENTS:
Mayor Bellah expressed Council would be discussing the contents of the executive session later
in the meeting. Additionally, he proposed the Council develop rules of procedures for public
meetings. He further expressed he prepared a document providing examples for rules of
behavior for Council, public, and staff for the public meetings to discuss under the topic of new
business. He announced the presentation of a plaque honoring the former City Attorney’s
service is moved to the following meeting, due to scheduling conflicts.

UPDATE ON COUNCIL MEMBER COMMISSIONS AND BOARD APPOINTMENTS:
1) Parks and Recreation – Councilor C. Bartell announced the prior meeting was canceled and

she had nothing to report. Mayor Bellah commented the President of the Hispanic Chamber
of Commerce expressed interest in being a part of the Dog Days of Summer event to be held
by the Parks Commission. Further discussion followed regarding an interested volunteer for
the Parks Commission.

2) Urban Renewal – There was nothing new to report, the next scheduled meeting is Monday,
May 12, 2014 at 6:30 p.m.

CONSENT CALENDAR:
1) Approval of the Minutes of the April 7, 2014 City Council Executive Session/Meeting.
2) Approval of the Minutes of the April 21, 2014 City Council Executive Session/Meeting.

MOVED BY S. BARTELL, SECONDED BY SOPHIE, TO APPROVE THE CONSENT
CALENDAR. There was no further discussion.

ROLL CALL VOTE AS FOLLOWS:
Ayes: Sophie, C. Bartell, Jones, S. Bartell, Chris Luz, and Helfrich
MOTION APPROVED WITH SIX AYES

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
Letter to Medford Water Commission (MWC). Mayor Bellah explained the letter was prepared
by RH2, and asked for Council discussion. Councilor S. Bartell commented the letter was
detailed and explanatory. Mayor Bellah expressed the argument from MWC may be the length
of time the meter was reading inaccurately; however, they do accept there is a problem. Further
discussion followed regarding the inaccurate meters at both ends. MOVED BY SOPHIE,
SECONDED BY HELFRICH, TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO SIGN THE LETTER TO
THE MEDFORD WATE RCOMMISSION REGARDING THE PROPOSED
RECONCILIATION OF THE TAP MASTER METER INACCURACY.

ROLL CALL VOTE AS FOLLOWS:
Ayes: Sophie, C. Bartell, Jones, S. Bartell, Chris Luz, and Helfrich
MOTION APPROVED WITH SIX AYES

Mr. Dahl announced he plans to schedule a meeting with the managers of Ashland and Talent
this month to discuss the TAP meter at the other end of Phoenix.



3
City Council Minutes – May 5, 2014

NEW BUSINESS:
1) Contract Award for the 4th Street Waterline Project. Mr. Dahl explained the City engineer

recommended KOGAP, the low bidder, as all of the bidders were qualified for the project.
Further discussion followed regarding the possibility of tying in with an Urban Renewal
project. Councilor Sophie inquired whether the City Manager is aware of the quality of
products used by KOGAP as their materials cost listed was much lower than the other
parties. Mr. Dahl responded he will confirm that the materials being used meet the City’s
standards; however, he is confident that each of the bidders is using products that are
standard for these types of projects. MOVED BY JONES, SECONDED BY C.
BARTELL, TO AWARD THE 4TH STREET WATERLINE PROJECT TO KOGAP
ENTERPRISES INC.

2) Contract Award for the South Phoenix Road Rehabilitation Project. Mr. Dahl noted that this
process is similar to the previous contract award and Knife River Materials was
recommended by the City engineer. MOVED BY JONES, SECONDED BY C.
BARTELL, TO AWARD THE SOUTH PHOENIX ROAD REHABILITATION PROJECT
TO KNIFE RIVER MATERIALS.

CITIZEN’S COMMENTS:
Louis Junghans, Phoenix, came forward to inquire about a system for emergency response. He
urged the City to prepare citizens, by way of a town meeting to educate the City as to how to act
when an emergency situation arises.

STAFF REPORTS:
1) City Manager’s Report:

a) Mr. Dahl requested Council autobiography information from each member for the new
website. Further discussion followed regarding the estimated date for the website to go
live.

b) He announced June 18, 2014 is the deadline for input on the September ballot. Further
discussion followed, as Council discussed delaying changes to the Charter until the
November ballot. Council’s consensus was to have a committee dedicated to suggested
changes to the Charter.

c) He commented he attended the LOC’s conference on Medical Marijuana and noted some
highlights from the forum.

d) He announced Ron Fox will give a presentation on enterprise zones at the upcoming
council meeting.

Mayor Bellah recessed the meeting for a five minute break at 7:26 p.m.

2) City Attorney’s Report:
a) Attorney Kirchoff expressed there a couple possibilities for changes to the business license

ordinance. Council discussed whether to introduce these changes to the ordinance at this
time or wait until after possible changes to the Charter. Council discussed pulling out the
language in part of the ordinance that was used to defend The Greenery’s position that can
be interpreted in different ways. They further discussed changing the language to state
that a business license may not be issued to a business that does not comply with



4
City Council Minutes – May 5, 2014

applicable laws, rather than stating any business operating that does not comply with local,
state, and federal laws. Further discussion followed regarding increasing the fine for
violating the ordinance to an amount up to $500. As discussion progressed, Council’s
direction to staff was to draft a revised ordinance for the upcoming City Council meeting
to include the recommended changes discussed.

Mayor Bellah explained the executive session was held to identify legal routes towards
enforcement of the moratorium on medical marijuana facilities. He further explained the
Council needs to decide how to proceed publicly. He further expressed the Council could decide
not to enforce the moratorium, which raises the question of the purpose of the moratorium. He
added that a second option would be to enforce the moratorium through circuit court and receive
an injunction to place the business violating the moratorium. Additionally, he explained a third
option would be to enforce it through fines. Finally, he noted the Council could decide to
enforce it through criminal action, as technically, the business operating would be in violation of
federal law.

Councilor Jones commented she is unaware of how to discourage other facilities from opening
up a shop in town, if the City chooses against enforcing the moratorium. Attorney Kirchoff
further explained that it would be difficult for the City to take a firm position regarding this
subject without enforcing the moratorium. Mr. Dahl explained the Planning Commission is
exploring different rules to suggest to Council regarding timing and location of these types of
facilities. He further explained he is seeking direction from Council regarding how to enforce
the moratorium, while staff is working through the process of how to regulate medical marijuana
facilities within City limits.

Mr. Dahl added if Council desires, he is willing to contact the owner of The Greenery to allow
the facility the opportunity to discontinue operation voluntarily, before the City pursues legal
action. Councilor Luz suggested enforcing the moratorium through the circuit court, not
criminally. Councilor Helfrich expressed he thought the moratorium included working with the
business that is currently in operation. Councilor Sophie suggested going to the business to see
if they will shut down business willingly. MOVED BY SOPHIE, SECONDED BY C.
BARTELL, TO DIRECT CITY STAFF TO ENFORCE THE MORATORIUM WITHOUT
INVOLVING CRIMINAL ACTION. Councilor Helfrich asked for clarification. Further
discussion followed.

ROLL CALL VOTE AS FOLLOWS:
Ayes: Sophie, C. Bartell, Jones, S. Bartell, and Chris Luz
Nays: Helfrich
MOTION APPROVED WITH FIVE AYES TO ONE NAY

Mayor Bellah requested the Council review the examples of the Rules of Procedure and prepare
to discuss a list of rules to update the City of Phoenix’s rules. He further expressed he is seeking
a professional decorum for the proceedings during the meetings. Further discussion followed.



5
City Council Minutes – May 5, 2014

COUNCIL ITEMS, COMMENTS/REPORTS:
1) Councilor Sophie reported he will be out of town from May 16th through the 21st.
2) Councilor Jones commented she attended the Oregon Hunger Task Force held at ACCESS.
3) Councilor Jones reported she has signed up the City of Phoenix for the Great American

Shakeout. She added that anyone can log onto shakeout.org at 10:19 a.m. on October 19,
2014 to practice earthquake preparedness. She further explained the Ford Family Foundation
offers a technical grant that Cities can apply for to gain assistance in gathering together and
distributing packets of information on emergency response. Further discussion followed
regarding an emergency response system for the City of Phoenix.

4) Councilor C. Bartell restated her comment made at a prior meeting, as she corrected herself
when she should not have. She expressed she stated that any medical marijuana facility
operating in the City is operating illegally.

5) Councilor S. Bartell requested the minutes from the April 29, 2014 Special City Council
meeting reflect Tere Knight’s comments and that she is a citizen of Medford. He went on to
read aloud a statement he prepared (on file), stating that at last week’s City Council meeting,
during Citizen’s Comments, Tere Knight personally attacked him and his wife. He further
expressed she made the rudest comments he had ever heard during Citizen Comments and
that no one should be allowed to personally attack any member of Council, City Staff, or the
Public. He further expressed that anyone with this behavior should not be allowed to attend
City Council meetings.

The meeting adjourned at 8:38 p.m.

Respectfully submitted, Attest:

Janette Boothe Steve Dahl
Deputy City Recorder City Manager/Recorder


